
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
22 May 2018

Time 5.30 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Executive

Venue Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre

Membership

The Chair and members of the 
Cabinet (Resources) Panel 

Quorum for this meeting is five Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Dereck Francis, Democratic Services
Tel/Email 01902 555835 or dereck.francis@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of interest 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting - 20 March 2018 (Pages 5 - 16)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4 Matters arising 
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes]

DECISION ITEMS (AMBER - DELEGATED TO THE CABINET (RESOURCES) PANEL)

5 Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices (Pages 17 - 26)
[To note the summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions approved 
by cabinet members following consultation with the relevant employees]

6 Exclusion of press and public 
[To pass the following resolution:

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information on the grounds shown 
below]

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public

7  Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works, 
Goods and Services (Pages 27 - 36)
[To award contracts for works, goods and services]

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information) Para (3)

8  Application to the High Court Injunction to Deal 
with Unauthorised Encampments (Pages 37 - 52)
[To approve an application to the High Court for an 
injunction to deal with the unauthorised encampments]  

Information in respect of which a 
claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings. Para (5)



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9  Procurement Update PP17156 - Development of 43 
New Dwellings at Burton Crescent and Single 
Storey Office Extension at 27 Burton Road (Pages 
53 - 58)
[To approve an additional contribution from the 
Housing Revenue Account to fund the award of the 
contract for the construction of 43 new council houses 
and a single storey office]

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information) Para (3)

10  Disposal of Former Housing Revenue Account 
Land and Garage Sites (Pages 59 - 74)
[To approve the disposal at auction of Housing 
Revenue Account land and garage sites]

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information) Para (3)



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Minutes - 20 March 2018

Attendance

Members of the Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Cllr Andrew Johnson (Chair)
Cllr Peter Bilson
Cllr Claire Darke
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Val Gibson
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Paul Sweet

Employees
Mark Bassett Future Space Programme Director
Emma Bennett Director of Children's Services
Ross Cook Service Director - City Environment
Dereck Francis Democratic Services Officer
Keith Ireland Managing Director
Tim Johnson Deputy Managing Director/Strategic Director - Place
Kevin O'Keefe Director of Governance
Alison Shannon Finance Business Partner
Mark Taylor Strategic Director - People
Meredith Teasdale Director of Education
David Watts Director of Adult Services

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Roger Lawrence and 
Sandra Samuels OBE.

2 Declarations of Interests
The Strategic Executive Board collectively declared a percuniary interest in item 5 
(Pay Policy Statement 2018-2019).

3 Minutes of the previous meeting - 27 February 2018
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2018 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

Page 5

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

4 Matters arising
There were no matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting.

5 Pay Policy Statement 2018-2019
Councillor Milkinder Jaspal presented the Council’s new Pay Policy Statement 2018-
2019 for onward transition to Council for approval and publication of the by 31 March 
2018 deadline. Section 38 of The Localism Act 2011 required that each council 
prepared an annual pay policy statement. 

Councillor Jaspal highlighted from the Pay Policy Statement that the Council’s pay 
ratio of 9.35:1 was less than the average local authority pay ratio of 11:1 and below 
the public-sector threshold of 20:1.  It was also below the Council’s pledge to keep 
the pay ratio below 10:1.   

Resolved:
That Council be recommended to: 

1. Approve the Pay Policy Statement for 2018 – 2019.

2. Approve the publication of the Pay Policy Statement by 31 March 2018 in 
line with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

6 Gender Pay Gap Report 2017
Councillor Milkinder Jaspal presented the report on the Council’s gender pay gap for 
2017. The information would be published on the government Gender Pay Gap 
reporting site by 30 March 2018 as required by legislation.

Councillor Jaspal highlighted that the pay gap within the Council of 7.76% was 
considerably below the national average, the public sector average and the West 
Midlands average for gender pay gap. Therefore comparatively, the Council’s 
performance around the gender pay gap had been good.  An action plan had been 
developed to help further improve the Council’s performance on the gender pay gap 
within the organisation.

Resolved:
1. That the report on the City of Wolverhampton Council’s Gender Pay Gap be 

endorsed.

2. That it be noted that the Gender Pay Gap data would be published on the 
Gender Pay Gap reporting site on the GOV.UK website, together with the 
report on the City of Wolverhampton Council’s Gender Pay Gap, as required 
by legislation.

7 Revenue Budget Monitoring Quarter Three 2017-2018
Councillor Andrew Johnson reported that as a result of proactive financial 
management across the Council a projected underspend in the region of £700,000 
was now forecast on the General Fund. A projected increased surplus of £1.7 million 
on the Housing Revenue Account was also projected. He also highlighted from the 
report the establishment of an Adult Social Care Reserve from underspends in 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

2017/2018 to offset pressures in 2018/2019.  The monitoring report also proposed a 
number of write-offs, virements and use of reserve requests requiring approval.   

Resolved:
1. That the use of £82,000 from the Regeneration Reserve to fund various 

development works and schemes as detailed at paragraph 5.2.2 of the report 
be approved.

2. That the amendment of draw down amounts of the Regeneration Reserve that 
were approved in Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 as outlined in at Table 7 of the 
report be approved. 

3. That the use of £104,000 from the Transformation Reserve to cover various 
works and schemes as detailed at paragraph 5.2.3 of the report be approved.

4. That the use of £169,000 from the Highways Management Reserve to cover 
various works and schemes as detailed at paragraph 5.2.4 of the report be 
approved.

5. That the establishment of a new specific reserve for Adult Social Care from 
underspends in 2017-2018 to offset pressures in 2018-2019 as outlined at 
paragraph 5.2.5 of the report be approved.

6. That the use of £332,000 from the Future Works Reserves to support Agresso 
System Development as detailed at paragraph 5.2.6 of the report be 
approved.

7. That the write off of one Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling 
£19,090.80 as detailed in Appendix 6 of the report be approved.

8. That the write off of five sundry debts totalling £120,156.60 as detailed in 
Appendix 7 of the report be approved.

9. That thirty-two virements totalling £8.2 million, for transfers within directorates, 
as detailed in Appendix 8 of the report be approved.

10.That the write off of £36,111.10 relating to five tenant rechargeable repair 
accounts over £5,000 as outlined in Appendix 10 of the report be approved.

 
11.That setting up of supplementary expenditure budgets within the 2017-2018 

approved budgets as detailed in paragraph 4.2 of the report for grant funded 
expenditure be approved.

12.That it be noted that as a result of proactive financial management across the 
Council, all services have completed recovery plans which have identified 
efficiencies and mitigating actions to recover the overspend that was forecast 
as at quarter two of 2017-2018. The overall projected outturn for the General 
Fund for 2017-2018 is now forecast to be an underspend in the region of 
£70,000. 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

13.That it be noted that projected redundancy costs, including the cost of pension 
strain, totalling £3.0 million are included in the forecast outturn. The projected 
costs are subject to change dependent upon the actual redundancies 
approved by year end. It is anticipated that Capital Receipts flexibility 
announced by the Secretary of State, will offset the cost of redundancies.

14.That it be noted that 522 council tax accounts totalling £201,553.80, as 
detailed in paragraph 8.4.1 of the report have been approved by for write off 
by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules.

15.That it be noted that 22 Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling 
£75,616.40, as detailed in paragraph 8.4.2 of the report, have been approved 
by for write off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules.

16.That it be noted that 143 sundry debt accounts totalling £107,007.72, as 
detailed in paragraph 8.3 of the report, have been approved by for write off by 
the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules.

17.That it be noted that 24 housing benefit overpayments totalling £16,336.13, as 
detailed in paragraph 8.7 of the report, have been approved for write off by the 
Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules.

18.That it be noted that a £18.5 million surplus on the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) is projected compared with a budgeted surplus of £16.8 million as 
shown at Table 10 and in detail at Appendix 9 to the report. The projected 
increased surplus of £1.7 million will be used to redeem debt in line with the 
HRA Business Plan.

19.That it be noted that the Director of Finance has approved the write off 1,240 
former HRA tenant rent accounts totalling £707,269.01, as detailed in 
paragraph 9.5.2 of the report in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules. 

20.That it be noted that the Director of Finance has approved the write off 430 
former tenant rechargeable repair accounts totalling £262,257.89, as detailed 
in paragraph 9.6.2 of the report in accordance with the Council’s Finance 
Procedure Rules.  

8 Quarter Three Treasury Management Activity Monitoring
Councillor Andrew Johnson presented the monitoring and progress report on 
treasury management activity for the third quarter of 2017-2018, in line with the 
Prudential Indicators approved by Council in March 2017.

Resolved:
1. That the contents of the report and in particular that the Council is continuing 

to operate within the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

approved by Council, and also within the requirements set out in the Council’s 
approved Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2017-2018 be noted. 

2. That it be noted that savings of £821,000 for the General Fund and £677,000 
for the Housing Revenue Account are forecast from treasury management 
activities in 2017-2018.

9 FutureSpace Update
Councillor Andrew Johnson presented the update report on the FutureSpace 
programme that summarised progress to date and set out the remaining activities to 
fulfil the agreed Business Case. The report sought to provide assurance that the 
approved FutureSpace programme was on time, on budget and would deliver the net 
savings to the Council of over £500,000 per annum. The programme would also 
deliver a much improved Civic Centre customer/visitor experience and environment 
for employees; and would deliver against the local benefits required from the 
Programme including taking on local apprentices, trainees and graduates as a 
condition of the contract; and the use of local employees, suppliers and other 
contractors on the contract.

The Panel recorded its thanks to the Strategic Director for Place, the Council’s 
project team and the Contractor on the excellent delivery of the contract.

Resolved:
1. That it be noted that the progress of the FutureSpace programme had been in 

line with the agreed mandate and intended outcomes.

2. That it be noted that the activity remaining is on target to achieve the 
outcomes and benefits as set out in the original business case.

3. That it be noted that the programme has been delivered using robust project 
and programme management consistent with the agreed corporate 
methodology.

10 Police and Crime Commissioner Grant Allocation 2018-2019
Councillor Paul Sweet sought approval to delegate the Police Grant Community 
Fund allocation 2018-2019 from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) to Safer 
Wolverhampton Partnership (SWP) in line with grant conditions, to aid delivery of 
agreed city-wide crime and community safety objectives.  As the Council was the 
Responsible Authority for SWP’s budget, formal delegation was required to enable 
the grant to be spent as intended.

Resolved:
That the delegation of the Police Grant Community Fund 2018-2019 allocation 
from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) to Safer Wolverhampton 
Partnership (SWP) for the purposes of delivering against the city’s Community 
Safety and Harm Reduction Strategy 2017-2020 be approved.

11 Recommendations from the Scrutiny Fire Safety Scoping Group
Councillor Peter Bilson presented for approval the executive response to the findings 
and recommendations from a scrutiny scoping exercise into fire safety.  He paid 
tribute to the work of the Scoping Group and its chair Councillor Greg Brackenridge 

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

for his diligence to the work.  He asked that the Panel’s congratulations be passed 
onto those involved in the scrutiny scoping work.
 
Councillor Greg Brackenridge was in attendance for this item.  He acknowledged the 
contributions made by all of the Scoping Group, witnesses and Scrutiny Board. The 
overall aim of the review was to assess the response of the City of Wolverhampton 
Council to the Grenfell Tower Fire.  The review report contained 26 
recommendations and Councillor Brackenridge highlighted a number of the findings.

Councillor Peter Bilson recommended that the Panel accept all of the 
recommendations from the scoping group. Some were actionable right away and 
others would take longer to deliver.  On to the question of the installation of 
sprinklers, Councillor Bilson commented that there was a need to introduce 
sprinklers as a matter of routine.  The Wolverhampton Homes Delivery Plan for 
2018-2019 agreed by Cabinet on 20 February 2018 included a capital provision for 
the installation of sprinklers in the Council’s housing stock.  Sprinklers would be retro 
fitted initially in Heath Town estate regeneration.

Resolved:
That the Executive response to the Scrutiny Group’s recommendations be 
approved.

12 Care and Support Provider Fee Review 2018-2019
Councillor Andrew Johnson asked the Panel to approve proposed increases in fee 
levels for 2018-2019 for care and support providers, direct payment cost rate, and 
the methodology used to develop the new rates. 

Resolved:
1. That the proposed increase in fee levels for 2018-2019 to meet the additional 

costs (employee and employer) resulting from the increases to the National 
Living Wage (NLW) be approved.

2. That the engagement with current care and support providers as part of the 
fee review which builds upon the open book exercise undertaken 2017-2018 
be noted. 

3. That the intention to review the terms of the Ethical Care Charter be noted.

13 External Funding Update
Councillor John Reynolds presented the report seeking approval to the submission of 
full applications for European Regional Development Fund for the Black Country AIM 
for GOLD (Advice Investment and Market Development and Growth Opportunities 
Local Delivery) Project and the Smart Intelligence Infrastructure Investment I3, should 
the outline application be successful.  External funders usually required the Council 
to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement outlining what the resource could be used 
for and rules and regulations relating to the funding source. It was therefore 
proposed that authority be delegated to the Cabinet Members for City Economy and 
Resources, in consultation with the Strategic Director for Place and the Director of 
Finance to enter into such agreements and approve budgets relating to successful 
bids or extensions to projects.

Page 10



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Resolved:
1. That the submission of a full application to the European Regional 

Development Fund (ERDF) for the Black Country AIM for GOLD (Advice 
Investment and Market Development and Growth Opportunities Local 
Delivery) Project be approved.

2. That authority be delegated to Cabinet Members for City Economy and 
Resources, in consultation with the Strategic Director Place and Director of 
Finance to enter into Grant Funding Agreements and approve budgets relating 
to successful bids or extensions to projects.

3. That the development of a full application for ERDF funding for a Smart 
Intelligence Infrastructure Investment I3 project should the outline application 
be successful be approved.

14 Acquisition of Privately Owned Empty Property by Agreement or Compulsory 
Purchase: 15 Gordon Avenue, Lanesfield, Wolverhampton, WV4 6PX
Councillor Peter Bilson presented the report that sought approval to acquire the 
property 15 Gordon Avenue, Lanesfield, Wolverhampton. WV4 6PX by negotiation or 
by the making of a compulsory purchase order (CPO) under Section 17 of Part II of 
the Housing Act 1985 (CPO). Should it be possible to reach agreement on a mutually 
acceptable undertaking, it was proposed that the property be withdrawn from the 
CPO. The decision was in support of the Council’s Empty Properties Strategy which 
aimed to bring long term empty properties back into use.

Resolved:
1. That the Service Director, City Housing be authorised to negotiate terms for 

the acquisition of the property 15 Gordon Avenue, Lanesfield, 
Wolverhampton, and, in default of that acquisition, give authority for a 
compulsory purchase order (CPO) to be made under Part II Section 17 
Housing Act 1985 in respect of the property.

2. That expenditure for the potential acquisition of the property, with subsequent 
capital receipts being recycled within the Empty Property Strategy programme 
be approved. 

3. That in the event that the property is improved and re-occupied to the 
satisfaction of the Service Director, City Housing, the property be withdrawn 
from the CPO. 

4. That following any acquisition, the Service Director, City Housing be 
authorised to dispose of the property on the open market on condition that the 
property is refurbished and re-occupied within six or 12 months (as 
appropriate to the scale of the works). 

5. That the Director of Governance be authorised to:

Page 11



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

a. Take all reasonable steps as soon as it is reasonably practical to secure 
the making, confirmation and implementation of the CPO including the 
publication and service of all Notices and the presentation of the Council’s 
case at any Public Inquiry. 

b. Approve agreements with the owners of the property setting out the terms 
for the withdrawal of objections to the CPO, and/or making arrangements 
for re-housing or relocation of any occupiers. 

c. Approve the making of a General Vesting Declaration (the property is 
brought into Council ownership via this process).

d. Approve the disposal of the whole and/ or parts of the property by auction, 
tender or private treaty.   

15 Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
Resolved:

That the summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions 
approved by the appropriate Cabinet Members following consultation with the 
relevant employees be noted.

16 Exclusion of press and public
Resolved:

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling 
within the paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public

17 Regional Adoption Agency Delegated Authority
Councillor Val Gibson presented the report on the detailed case for creating a new 
Regional Adoption Agency - Black Country Care and Support Services Limited, to be 
known as Adoption@Heart.  Approval was sought to the proposed governance 
arrangements, financial model and funding arrangements, and implications for 
Council staff of the proposal.  

The development of RAA was part of the national regionalising adoption programme.  
All local authorities were expected to deliver their adoption services through an RAA 
by 2020.

Resolved:
1. That the establishment of the Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) be approved.

2. That the service design, structure and governance of the RAA as a Local 
Authority Trading Company, including transfer of staff into the new 
organisation be approved.

3. That the financial model and funding formula be approved.

4. That the governance arrangements be approved.

Page 12



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

5. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources and the 
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People in consultation with the 
Director of Finance and Director for Children’s Services to make further 
decisions specifically relating to:

a. The finalisation of arrangements for the delivery of support services to the 
RAA, ensuring that the ‘back office’ costs are funded by Local Authorities 
and the RAA has a viable balanced budget. 

b. Cash flows for the RAA. 
c. The development of an agreed funding protocol between the Local 

Authorities/Trust to enable the functioning of the funding formula, 
including tolerances and arrangements for spot purchasing to 
accommodate variations in numbers of placements required.  

d. Arrangements for transferring budgets to the RAA during the 2018-2019 
financial year to minimise exposure of either the Local Authorities or the 
RAA to risks of overspend. 

e. The development of a risk sharing agreement between the four Local 
Authorities/Trust and the RAA, with appropriate governance for LAs to 
hold the RAA accountable.

f. Authorising Adoption@Heart officer director appointments as 
appointments to an external body.

g. Taking any and all decisions including without limitation the approval of all 
documents to enable the RAA to be incorporated; and

h. Taking any and all necessary shareholder decisions required following 
incorporation.

6. That authority be delegated to the Director of Governance, in consultation with 
the Director of Children’s Services, to enter into and authorise all necessary 
deeds, contracts and other related documents to implement the above 
recommendations.

18 Looked After Children Housing Adaptation Application
Councillor Val Gibson presented the report on an application for housing adaptations 
for looked after children (LAC) in accordance with the Council’s Extensions 
/Alterations to Foster Carers Own Properties policy.  The purpose of the policy was 
to assist in securing permanence to LAC which was a key priority to the Children and 
Young People service.

Resolved
1. That the funding for housing adaptations for two looked after children with 

severe disabilities be approved. 

2. That the virement of £100,000 from the Disabled Facilities Grant project to the 
Extension / Vehicles capital project be approved.

3. That the creation of a new scheme ‘Extension Mr & Mrs G’ and the virement of 
£147,000 from the Extension / Vehicles project to fund the housing 
adaptations be approved.

Page 13



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

19 Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works, Goods and Services
The Panel considered proposals for the award of contracts for works, goods and 
services.  

An amendment was proposed to paragraph 6.6.17 of the report and the 
corresponding recommendation, to correct the delegation from the Cabinet Member 
for Resources to the Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing; and to reflect 
that the contract would be for a one year period and subject to successful completion 
of agreed activities by the contractor in the first year, the contract would be extended 
for a further year.

Resolved:
1. That authority be delegated to:

a. the Cabinet Member for Resources, in consultation with the Director of 
Finance, to approve the award of a contract for Lots 1 and 3 for 
Enforcement Agents Services when the evaluation is complete.

b. the Cabinet Member for City Environment, in consultation with the 
Strategic Director for Place, to approve the award of a contract for Lot 2 
for Enforcement Agent Services when the evaluation is complete.

2. That the contracts for Support for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 
for two years from 27 March 2018 to 26 March 2020 be awarded to:
a. Refugee and Migrant Centre Limited of 1st Floor Roma Parva 9 Waterloo, 

Road, Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV1 4NB for £197,018.

b. Wolverhampton Clinical Commissioning Group of Wolverhampton 
Science Park, Technology Centre, Glaisher Dr, Wolverhampton WV10 
9RU for £126,600.

3. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in 
consultation with the Strategic Director for People, to approve the award of a 
contract for Multi-Functional Devices when the evaluation process is 
complete.

4. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in 
consultation with the Strategic Director for People, to approve the award of a 
contract for Provision of a Wide Area Network when the evaluation process is 
complete.

5. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in 
consultation with the Strategic Director for People, to approve the award of a 
contract for Provision of Internet Services when the evaluation process is 
complete.

6. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Resources, in 
consultation with the Director of Finance, to approve the novation and 
extension of the contract for the Support and Maintenance of Unit4 Business 
World (Agresso) to Unit4 Business Software Limited of Eden House, Eden 
Office Park, 82 Macrae Road, Pill, Bristol, England, BS20 0DD for three years 
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021, when the negotiation is complete.

Page 14



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

7. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Economy, in 
consultation with the Strategic Director for Place, to approve the award of a 
contract for a Management Information System for Adult Education when the 
evaluation process is complete.

8. That the award of a contract be authorised for the Supply of Independent 
Living Equipment to London Borough of Croydon of Bernard Weatherill 
House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon, CR0 1EA for three years from 1 June 2018 to 
31 May 2021.

9. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Public Health and 
Wellbeing, in consultation with the Strategic Director for People, to approve 
the award of the contract for the Healthy Child Programme to Royal 
Wolverhampton NHS Trust of New Cross Hospital, Wolverhampton Road, 
Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV10 0QPfor one year from 1 April 2018 to 
31 March 2019, when the negotiation is complete. Subsequently, subject to 
successful completion of agreed activities by RWT in the first year, to then 
extend the contract for a further one year from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

10.That the award of contracts be authorised to providers who meet the 
registration requirements for undertaking NHS Health Checks for up to a four 
year period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2022.

11.That the Director of Governance be authorised to execute contracts in respect 
of the above as required.

20 Schools Condition Allocation Capital Programme 2018-2019
Councillor Peter Bilson presented the report that set out the priorities for the school 
condition capital allocation for 2018-2019. The proposed capital programme would 
reduce the highest priority condition liabilities identified from the schools property 
database.  The programme would also reduce the risk of any school closures due to 
maintenance issues.

Resolved:
1. That the detailed projects for school’s condition allocation capital funding in 

2018-2019 as listed in paragraph 3.6 of the report be approved.

2. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and 
Housing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education, and 
Strategic Director of Place, to initiate works in relation to emergency works 
preventing a school closure, the nature of which would not allow sufficient 
time to gain normal Council approvals, then to be confirmed through an 
Individual Executive Decision Notice and to enter into any ancillary 
agreements necessary for the works to be undertaken.

3. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and 
Housing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education, and 
Strategic Director of Place, to initiate works in relation to asbestos removal 
preventing a school closure, the nature of which would not allow sufficient 

Page 15



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

time to gain normal Council approvals, then to be confirmed through an 
Individual Executive Decision Notice.

4. That it be noted that the resources available for implementing the 2018-2019 
school’s capital maintenance programme are provisionally £1.7 million (This 
figure would be adjusted once grant confirmed) against a condition backlog 
of £3 million for priority 1 items.

5. That it be noted that the resources available for basic need have been fully 
committed toward the expansion of the primary and secondary school estate, 
to support the provision of additional pupil places given a continued increase 
in demand.

21 Waste and Recycling Services
Councillor Steve Evans presented an update report on the implementation of 
changes to the Waste and Recycling service agreed by Cabinet on 22 February 
2017.

Resolved:
1. That the revised waste and recycling services as detailed in this report be 

approved.

2. That the delegation of the appropriate commercial and legal arrangements 
between the Council and Enterprise Managed Services Ltd (Amey PLC) and 
any changes to service charges to facilitate the new waste and recycling 
services to be delivered be approved.

3. That the finalisation of the arrangements be delegated to the Leader of the 
Council and the Cabinet Member for Environment in consultation with the 
Managing Director and the Deputy Managing Director/Strategic Director for 
Place.

Page 16



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
22 May 2018

Report title Schedule of Individual Executive Decision 
Notices

Decision designation AMBER
Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility

All

Key decision No
In forward plan No

Wards affected All

Accountable director Kevin O’Keefe, Governance
Originating service Democratic Support
Accountable employee(s) Dereck Francis

Tel
Email

Democratic Services Officer 
01902 555835
dereck.francis@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been 
considered by

N/A

Recommendation for noting:

The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is asked to note the summary of open and exempt 
individual executive decisions approved by the appropriate Cabinet Members following 
consultation with the relevant employees.

Page 17

Agenda Item No: 5



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices 

Part 1 – Open Items 
1. Corporate 

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Andrew 
Johnson

Director of Finance 25 April 2018 Alison Shannon
01902 554561

Title and summary of decision 
Payments to the West Midlands Pension Fund
Approve that a payment of £57.3 million be made to the West Midlands Pension Fund in 
respect to employer’s contributions for 2018-2019 and 2019-2020.

2. People

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Sandra 
Samuels OBE

Strategic Director for 
People  

4 April 2018 Sarah Smith
01902 555318

Title and summary of decision 
Care and Support Provider Fee Review
Confirmed the actual hourly rates from 2 April 2018 for providers of domiciliary care, direct 
payments, residential and nursing placements, extra care supported living and residential 
provision for people under 65 years with complex needs.

3. Place

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Service Director: 
Housing

10 April 2018 Steve North
01902 555782

Title and summary of decision 
Small Sites Council House New Build Project Phase Three – Easements for Electricity 
Supply
1. Approved the granting of easements to Western Power Distribution to enable them to 

supply electricity on the following four sites as part of the delivery of the small sites new 
build council housing phase three:

 Land at the side of the rear of 54-72 peach Road, Wednesfield North Ward.
 Land adjacent to 40 Wolverhampton Road, Wednesfield South Ward.
 Open space at Newman Road, Fallings Park Road. 
 Parker Road Garage Site, Wednesfield North East.

2. Approved that an Authorised Officer, Legal Services complete the signing of the 
easements.

Page 18



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy 

12 March 2018 Heather Clark
01902 555614

Title and summary of decision 
Universal Support 
Agreed to the Council entering into a grant offer letter, grant funding agreement and data 
sharing agreement with the Department for Work and Pensions relating to Universal Support 
Grant.

Part 2 – Exempt Items

1. Corporate

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Roger 
Lawrence 

Managing Director 29 March 2018 Claire Nye
01902 550478

Title and summary of decision 
City of Wolverhampton College
1. Approved the final documents to implement the financial support package detailed in the 

report based on assurances received from the Director of Finance and the Director of 
Governance.

2. Authorised the Director of Governance to execute the legal documents.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Andrew 
Johnson

Director of Finance 10 April 2018 Claire Nye
01902 550478

Title and summary of decision 
Partner Support to Secure Grant Funding 
1. Approved the final terms for the guarantee with Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council.

2. Approved the final terms for the deed of covenant with the University.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Andrew 
Johnson

Director of Commercial 
Services 

19 April 2018 Andy Hoare
01902 554563

Title and summary of decision 
Award of Contracts for a Qlickview Development Partner
Awarded the contract for a QlikView Development Partner to Insight Direct (UK) Ltd of Metro 
Building, 5th Floor, Trafford Road, Salford Quays, Manchester, M5 3NN for a duration of 18 
months from 1 April 2018 to 31 October 2019 for a total contract value of up to £500,000 
dependent on usage.

Page 19



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Andrew 
Johnson

Director of Finance 19 April 2018 Peter Farrow
01902 554460

Title and summary of decision 
Appointment of External Auditors 
Approved the award of the contract for the Appointment of External Auditors to Grant Thornton 
(UK) LLP for a duration of five years from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2023 for a total contract 
value of £875,000.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Claire 
Darke

Director of Education 13 March 2018 Simon Pons
01902 551488

Title and summary of decision 
Award of Construction Professional Services for Loxdale Primary School and Aldersley 
High School Projects
Awarded the contract for Construction Professional Services for Loxdale Primary School and 
Aldersley High School Projects to Perfect Circle JV Ltd of Leicester for a duration of two years 
from 1 February 2018 to 1 February 2020 for a total contract value of £526,823.

3. People

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Val Gibson Strategic Director for 

People 
14 March 2018 Kush Patel 

01902 554503
Title and summary of decision 
Emotional Mental Health and Wellbeing Services  
Awarded the contract for Emotional Mental Health and Wellbeing Services to The Children’s 
Society Services Ltd, Edward Rudolf House, Margery St, London, WC1X 0JL for a duration of 
36 months from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021 for a total contract value of £1,036,896.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Paul 
Sweet

Strategic Director for 
People

9 April 2018 Michelle Marie-
Smith
01902 550154 

Title and summary of decision 
NHS Health Checks - Award of Contracts
Awarded the contracts for NHS Health Checks to General Practitioner providers who have 
registered to undertake NHS Health Checks for up to a four year period from 1 April 2018 to 
March 2022.

Page 20



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4. Place

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Head of Corporate 
Landlord

20 December 2017 
and 16 January 2018

Julia Nock
01902 550316

Title and summary of decision 
Land and Property Transactions
Approved proceeding with the following transactions relating to leases, easements, notices, 
surrenders and other deeds and their terms:

1. Deed of Waiver in respect of landlords rights to seize assets at Former Edward Vaughan 
Stamping Works, Horseley Fields.

2. Wayleave agreement, Barnhurst Lane, Wolverhampton.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Head of Corporate 
Landlord

15 February 2018 Julia Nock
01902 550316

Title and summary of decision 
Land and Property Transactions
Approved the completion of the following transactions relating to disposals and their terms:

1. Garage site at Hurst Road, Springvale.
2. Garage site at Hall Green Street, Bradley.
3. Land adjoining 103 Sweetman Street, Whitmore Reans.
4. Garage site and land at Wrekin Drive, Merridale.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Service Director: 
Housing

20 March 2018 Jane Trethewey
01902 555583

Title and summary of decision 
Right to Buy One for One Expenditure 
Approved the investment of £450,000 of Right to Buy ‘one-for-one’ receipts into the Bromford 
Housing Group’s ‘My Place’ scheme at Wood End Road, providing for lower rent for the 
tenants of this scheme, supporting affordability outcomes.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Head of Corporate 
Landlord  

10 April 2018 Karen James
01902 551414

Title and summary of decision 
License for WV Living and its contractor to occupy land at Sweet Briar Road Ettingshall
Approved the granting of a license to WV Living and its appointed contractor to occupy the 
land at Sweet Briar Road, Ettingshall, for the construction of houses and apartments, for 
disposal to City of Wolverhampton Council.

Page 21



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Head of Corporate 
Landlord

10 April 2018 Julia Nock
01902 550316

Title and summary of decision 
Corporate Asset Management Fund – Approval of Schemes for 2018/19
Approve the updated programme of works including four existing projects that were held during 
2017-2018 and 11 new projects to be funded from the Corporate Asset Management Fund.

Planned Enhancement & Statutory Compliance Measures
Existing Projects that were held during 2017-2018 
Graiseley Music School – Windows replacement
Bilston United Football Club – Demolition of changing room buildings
East Park Pool – Install new filtration systems and chemical dosing for pool
Bradley Day Centre – Roof replacement

New Projects for 2018-2019
Wednesfield Community Hub – Upgrade heating system
Graiseley Technology Support Centre – Roof replacement
Warstones Library – Boiler replacement
Blakenhall Community Centre – Boiler replacement
Eastfield Community Centre – New heating system
Makers Dozen – Replacement of rainwater disposal system
Bilston Market – Full roof glass panels replacement
Bingley Enterprise Centre – Roof replacement
Bradmore Community Centre – Roof replacement 
Ashmore Park Community Hub – Roof replacement
Goldthorn Assembly Hall – Roof replacement

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson

Director of Governance 
and Director of Finance 

17 April 2018 Karen James
01902 551414

Title and summary of decision 
Sale of land to WV Living – former site of Ettingshall Primary School, land at Prouds 
Lane, Bilston  
1. Approved the transfer of the former site of Ettingshall Primary School, Ettingshall to WV 

Living on the Heads of Terms agreed.

2 Required WV Living to enter into a s106 agreement in respect of the former site of 
Ettingshall Primary School simultaneously with completion of the purchase of the site from 
the City Council. 

3 Approved the transfer of the former Bilston Leisure Centre and Bilston Day Nursery site at 
Prouds Lane, Bilston to WV Living on the Heads of Terms agreed. 

4 Required WV Living to enter into a s106 agreement in respect of the former Bilston Leisure 
Centre and Bilston Day Nursery site simultaneously with completion of the purchase of the 
site from the City Council

Page 22



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Peter 
Bilson and Councillor 
Sandra Samuels 
OBE

Director for Adults and 
Service Director: 
Housing

27 March 2018 Ravi Phull
01902 552812

Title and summary of decision 
Request for Discretionary Top up to Disabled Facilities Grant 
1. Agreed to the provision of discretionary top-up for the two cases at a total cost of a 

maximum of £10,000.

2. Determined that the full amount of any discretionary grant becomes repayable if the 
ownership of the property is transferred by any means within ten years of the completion of 
the grant aided works. A local land charge would be registered to reflect this condition.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy, Director of 
Governance and 
Director of Finance  

7 March 2018 Kevin Moore
01902 555570

Title and summary of decision 
Bilston Urban Village – Sale of Residential Development Land
Approved the heads of terms for the sale of land to Countryside Properties (UK) Limited 
together with the execution of a conditional sale contract and ancillary agreements.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Strategic Director for 
Place, Director of 
Finance and Director of 
Governance

27 March 2018 Anita Pearce
01902 551262

Title and summary of decision 
City Learning Quarter – Acquisition of properties
Approved the purchase of the car park on the corner of Bilston Street and George’s Parade as 
part of the ongoing land assembly required to enable the City Learning Quarter. 

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Strategic Director for 
Place

23 April 2018 Tim Pritchard
01902 552904

Title and summary of decision 
Civic Hall Improvement and Restoration: Deeds of Variation
1. Approved the Council entering into a deed of variation with the current JCT Standard Form 

of Contract, with the Shaylor Group and any ancillary documents to allow them to progress 
the design of works and associated surveys.

2. Approved the expenditure of up to £1.915 million for contractor design fees and associated 
trials/surveys.

Page 23



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynold

Service Director: City 
Economy 

23 April 2018 Kevin Moore
01902 555570

Title and summary of decision 
The Hop Pole Public House, Bilston
Approve the terms agreed for the demolition of the Hop Pole Public House and the surrender 
of the lease of the property by Marstons plc.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy

5 February 2018 Emma Kirkbride
01902 550114

Title and summary of decision 
Black Country Blue Network Payments of Grants
Approved the payment of grant funding to delivery partners in reimbursement of costs in the 
delivery of the Black Country Blue Network Project as follows:

Delivery Partner 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 Total
Grant

£000 £000 £000
Environment Agency (Ford Brook) 5 32 37
Birmingham and Black Country Wildlife Trust 
(Growing Local Flora)

6 4 10

Walsall MBC (Reedswood) 47 33 80
Canal and River Trust (Bradley Canal) - 80 80
Total European Regional Development 
Fund grant payable to partners

58 149 207

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Strategic Director for 
Place 

25 April 2018 Paul Lakin
01902 557978

Title and summary of decision 
Station Lease Area
Authorised the Director of Governance to:
1. Enter-into a lease with Network Rail in accordance with the agreed Heads of Terms. The 

lease will be an interim arrangement between the Council and Network Rail which relates to 
the wrap-around area outside of the multi-storey car park.

2. Enter into a supplemental agreement and ancillary agreements with ION for the main 
station works and to commit to sums referred.

3. Enter-into collateral warranties with the main building contractor and their sub-contractors 
and consultants. This provides the Council with the rights to pursue third parties in 
circumstances where there is some form of defect.

4. Enter into a contribution agreement with West Midlands Combined Authority 
(WMCA) in order to receive the WMCA contribution and additional funding 
commitments for the scheme.

Page 24



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy

12 February 2018 Robert Harrington
01902 323274

Title and summary of decision 
Black Country Transformational Growth Opportunities Local Delivery (GOLD) payments 
of Grants to Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs)
Approved the payment of grants to nine companies for projects totalling £91,353 (£73,971 
capital and £17,382 revenue). The grants will attract match funding from the businesses of 
£208,301 and will therefore enable projects to take place with a total value of £481,192.  

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy

9 April 2018 Robert Harrington
01902 323274

Title and summary of decision 
Black Country Transformational GOLD payments of grants to SMEs
Approved the payment of grants to eight companies for projects totalling £71,414 (£63,628 capital 
and £7,786 revenue). The grants will attract match funding from the businesses of £155,655 and 
will therefore enable projects to take place with a total value of £227,069. 

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: City 
Economy

14 April 2018 Robert Harrington
01902 323274

Title and summary of decision 
Black Country Transformational GOLD payments of grants to SMEs
Approved the payment of grants to seven companies for projects totalling £133,021 (£84,666 
capital and £48,355 revenue). The grants will attract match funding from the businesses of 
£307,339 and will therefore enable projects to take place with a total value of £481,192.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor John 
Reynolds

Service Director: 
Regeneration

8 May 2018 Robert Harrington
01902 323274

Title and summary of decision 
Black Country Transformational GOLD payments of grants to SMEs
Approved the payment of grants to ten companies for projects totalling £133,141 (£117,349 
capital and £15,792 revenue). The grants will attract match funding from the businesses of 
£348,051 and will therefore enable projects to take place with a total value of £481,192 The 
projects have the potential to create 24 new jobs.

Page 25



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Steve 
Evans

Director of Governance 20 April 2018 Chris Howell
01902 555490

Title and summary of decision 
Taxi Licensing Plates
Awarded the contract for Taxi Licensing Plates to New Auto Ltd t/a MOGO UK of 66 Outram 
Street, Sutton-in-Ashfield, Nottinghamshire, NG17 4FS for a duration of five years from 1 April 
2018 to 31 March 2023 for an estimated contract value of £701,080.

Decision maker In consultation with Date Approved Contact Officer
Councillor Steve 
Evans

Service Director City 
Environment 

15 December 2017 Shaun Walker
01902 554548

Title and summary of decision 
Control of Fly Grazing in Wolverhampton
Approved the ad hoc use of Equine Emergency Services to act in accordance with the Animals 
Act 1971 to manage horses on Council owned land that are present without lawful authority 
until a new contract can be put in place during 2018.

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item No: 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item No: 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item No: 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item No: 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting - 20 March 2018
	5 Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
	7 Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works, Goods and Services
	8 Application to the High Court Injunction to Deal with Unauthorised Encampments
	Appendix 1 for Application for High Court Injunction to deal with unauthorised encampments
	Appendix 2 for Application for High Court Injunction to deal with unauthorised encampments

	9 Procurement Update PP17156 - Development of 43 New Dwellings at Burton Crescent and Single Storey Office Extension at 27 Burton Road
	10 Disposal of Former Housing Revenue Account Land and Garage Sites

